APPROVED MINUTES

OF THE IEEE EMC SOCIETY BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING

The Hyatt Regency Hotel Long Beach, CA August 14, 2011

MEMBERS PRESENT (24)

- B. Archambeault
 - H. Benitez
 - C. Bunting
 - L. Cohen
 - R. Davis
 - A. Duffy
 - R. Ford
 - D. Heirman
 - D. Hoolihan
 - T. Hubing
 - R. Koga
 - J. LaSalle
 - F. Maradei
 - A. Marvin
 - J. Norgard
 - M. Oliver
 - J. O'Neil
 - G. Pettit
 - K. Phipps
 - R. Scully
 - D. Sweeney
 - K. Williams
 - P. Wilson
 - T. Yoshino

ABSENT (2)

- E. Joffe
- V. Roje

GUESTS (6)

- H. Garbe
- F. Heather
- H. R. Hofmann
- M. Montrose
 - S. Pignari
 - Q. Ye

1.0 THE PRESIDENT'S OPENING REMARKS

President Maradei called the meeting to order at 9:00 am. A round of introductions was made. She reviewed Board meeting protocol, the IEEE code of ethics, and upcoming activities (see President's Introductory Remarks). She reminded Board members of the material on the Board FTP site and asked that everyone remember to review this prior to the Board meetings (ftp://ewh.ieee.org). Ms. Maradei welcomed the new Board members present and thanked them for their interest in the Board activities.

2.0 CONSENT AGENDA MOTIONS

The agenda was presented for review. (See Final Agenda.) The consent agenda (see Consent Agenda) includes approval of several motions. Secretary Janet O'Neil requested that the March meeting minutes be removed so that Board members can review the amendments made to the minutes for voting on at the Thursday Board meeting. The balance of the motions remained on the consent agenda, including approval of the August 14, 2011 meeting agenda, the \$40,000 interest free loan to the committee for the IEEE 2013 International Symposium on EMC, and the \$1,000 interest free loan to the committee for the IEEE 2016 International Symposium on EMC. Andy Marvin moved to approve the consent agenda as presented. The motion was seconded and approved.

3.0 PRESIDENT'S REPORT

Francesca Maradei reviewed the activity of the Excom meeting held the previous evening. The meeting addressed administrative points including the agenda review, motions to be presented, etc. All items discussed are included on the meeting agenda.

Regarding Global Outreach, Ms. Maradei reported on the two regional events held in Buenos Aires (April 1, 2011) and Brasilia (April 4, 2011). Over 90 people attended the Buenos Aires event she attended and gave a presentation. Over 70 people attended the event in Brasilia. Ms. Maradei attended the IEEE Workshop on Signal Propagation on Interconnects (SPI'2011) which was technically co-sponsored by the EMC-S for the first time. She plans to attend EMC Europe over September 26-30, 2011. She noted the Asia Pacific EMC Committee would like to see more involvement from the Board. This will be held from May 21-24, 2012 in Singapore.

Ms. Maradei asked Ghery Pettit to speak about the June IEEE TAB meeting series in Bellevue, WA which he attended as her representative. Mr. Pettit mentioned that there is a plan within TAB to offer Society memberships at a consistent discounted fee (see President's report). The outline of the TAB report and recommendation is posted on the Board Forum. Mr. Pettit noted that a committee should be formed to address what should be included in the Society membership at an initial and enhanced level. Todd Hubing, Dick Ford, Kimball Williams, and Bob Davis volunteered to be members of this committee.

Ms. Maradei reported that the EMC Society has successfully completed the periodic five-year Society review on behalf of the TAB Society Review Committee (SRC). Several best practices of the EMC Society were commended, including having a strategic plan for the Society, having a detailed procedure for technical co-sponsorship of conferences, conducting the Global EMC University Program, having an effective chapter database (this was recommend to IEEE MGA) and retreat for chapter chairs, to name a few.

Regarding the status of electronic motions made since the last Board meeting in March, the Board approved a 10% surplus (\$10K Cap) distribution to the IEEE International Symposium Steering Committee. This is applicable when the symposium committee does not have a specific hosting chapter/section.

4.0 TREASURER'S REPORT

John LaSalle presented a report on EMC Society finances. (See Treasurer's Report.) IEEE Operations are strong and this will impact spending from Society reserves. As of the end of June, operations are considered to be "normal" with an actual year-to-date surplus of \$300.5K; this is considerably higher than the planned budget of \$21,000. The Society is tracking toward the budgeted \$21.0K positive net income. IEEE is currently forecasting a net positive \$23.5K, indicating an overall positive position. The result is a \$2.5K favorable position. Angel Funds approved included UKRI (United Kingdom & Republic of Ireland) – Paul Vertannes, Shanghai - Hongmei Fan, and Germany - Frank Sabath. The EMC 2010 Symposium (Ft Lauderdale) is currently undergoing audit. The surplus is expected to be some 19.5% or \$200K. The report concludes with comparison of two conference management bids.

Mr. LaSalle moved to approve a new domestic travel expense subsidy in addition to the financial policy as detailed in his report. (See Travel Subsidy Motion.) The motion was seconded and discussion followed. A motion to table this motion was made, but did not pass. The original motion was voted upon and approved. There was one opposed vote and two abstentions; of these, all wished to be recorded. Don Sweeney opposed the motion. Those abstaining from voting included Kimball Williams and Dick Ford.

5.0 COMMUNICATION SERVICES

Perry Wilson, Vice-President for Communication Services, presented his report. (See VP Communications Report.)

Mr. Wilson discussed the Transactions on EMC and expanding the number of issues per year to keep up with the paper submittals and to expedite time to publication. Mr. Wilson moved to approve the transition of the IEEE Transactions on Electromagnetic Compatibility from 4 issues per year to 6 issues per year (proposed Feb., April, June, Aug., Oct., and Dec.). The motion was seconded and approved. Regarding implementation, the Board approved initiating the extra issues as soon as possible and not waiting until 2012.

Janet O'Neil presented four slides on the newsletter transition to a magazine. The Board suggested greater promotion of the transition to the general membership via the web and an email blast.

NEWSLETTER

Newsletter Editor Janet O'Neil reported on Newsletter finances for the Winter 2011 and Spring 2011 issues (see VP Communications Report). The Winter issue at 84 pages cost \$19,174 for the printing and mailing of 5,396 copies. There were 8 ads in the issue that generated \$12,040 in billed ad revenue, of which the EMC Society received a net of \$6,742. The Spring issue at 100 pages cost \$19,842 for the printing and mailing of 4,674 copies. There were 21 ads in the issue that generated \$26,549 in billed ad revenue, of which the EMC Society received a net of \$14,867. The Spring issue featured a photo of the late Risaburo Sato – the "father of EMC" in Japan – on the cover. I've received many compliments on the cover and issue in general. This was the first issue with Professor Kye Yak See of the Nanyang Technical University in Singapore as the Technical Editor. The Summer 2011 issue is still in production. It has all the standard articles and again three practical papers. We are starting to build a queue of practical papers so we will regularly publish three papers in each issue. Associate editor Antonio Orlandi reports that he is out of books to review. If you can help by providing suggestions of books to review, please let me or Antonio know. He can be reached at antonio.orlandi@univaq.it. On the Newsletter to Magazine transition, we are in the process of designing new graphics for the first issue of the magazine to launch in 2012. We are working with IEEE Media to develop the media kit for 2012 – our new magazine will be included in the ad sales pitched by IEEE Media representatives.

TRANSACTIONS

Professor Heyno Garbe, the Editor-in-Chief of the *Transactions on EMC*, reports that he is seeing a 10% increase in the number of papers submitted and has requested a 2012 page budget of 1,320 pages to handle the submission increase. An actual page budget of 1200 pages for 2012 was approved as part of the motion to increase the number of issues to six. A further increase will be considered as part of the 2013 page budgeting process. There are currently 20 Associate Editors with a resource of some 200-300 reviewers, of which 100 are active in any given year. On special issues, in 2012 the topic is "The Impact of High-Altitude Electromagnetic Pulse (HEMP) on Civil Infrastructures" with guest editor Bill Radasky. In 2013 the topic is "Model Validation and EMC" with guest editors Bruce Archambeault, Alistair Duffy, and others.

HISTORY

Dan Hoolihan, Chair of the EMC Society's History Committee, reports that the web page has been updated to include an improvement to the Hall of Fame page. Articles continue to be submitted to the Newsletter while the inventory of donated equipment (historical artifacts) continues to grow. How to effectively archive the records of key EMC-S members continues to be a topic for discussion. The Founders and Past-Presidents Luncheon is Wednesday at noon. All Board members are invited to attend.

WEB

Todd Hubing reported several routine updates continue to be made to committee, chapter, conference, and awards web pages.

IEEE PRESS

Ray Perez reports that there were no EMC sponsored books in progress for 2011 and none were published in 2011. Two well-advertised attempts to recruit authors did not produce results. A new call for authors will be posted at the current symposium; one target is Aerospace EMC, a handbook is under consideration. Total royalties for EMC-S sponsored books in 2010 amounted to \$1,365.34.

6.0 MEMBER SERVICES REPORT

Bob Davis, Vice-President for Member Services, presented his report. (See VP Member Services Report.) He began his report with a discussion on four motions.

Regarding the Constitution and Bylaws committee, Mr. Hubing moved to approve the amendments outlined in his report (see Addendum 1 for the exact wording). The motion was seconded and approved.

Mr. Davis moved to approve the appointment of Gustavo Fano as the new Region 9 coordinator. The motion was seconded and approved.

Mr. Davis moved to approve the establishment of membership coordinators in China with An Hao and Erping Li. The motion was seconded and approved. Don Sweeney abstained and wished to be recorded. Takeo Yoshino and Ruji Koga voted against the motion and wished to be recorded.

Regarding the chapter websites, Mr. Davis discussed using existing funding to develop a Chapter website template to be used by those chapters that do not have the capability of setting one up and by those that want to modernize their present website. **Mr. Davis moved to approve the use of existing funding to develop a Chapter**

website template. The motion was seconded and approved. Dick Ford wished to be recorded as voting against the motion.

AWARDS

The awards committee consists of Bruce Archambeault and Mike Oliver, Co-Chairmen, with Colin Brench, Christian Schuster, Tzong-Lin Wu, and Jun Fan. Mike Oliver reported that all awards for the Awards Luncheon planned for the upcoming 2011 Symposium in Long Beach, CA are complete; plaques are being fabricated and certificates printed. All award certificates/plaques that are not received in person during the Awards Luncheon will be sent to the recipient. Rosanne Loyal (Senior Manager, Society Member and Committee Services) stated that the proposal for the establishment of an "IEEE EMC-S Award for Excellence in Continuing EMC Engineering Education" was approved by TAB at its June meeting. Bruce Archambeault and Mike Oliver will coordinate with Todd Hubing to incorporate the new award on the web site and with Janet O'Neil as an announcement in the Newsletter Bruce Archambeault and Mike Oliver are to create a policy regarding potential conflict of interest for the awards committee and endorsement of candidates.

COMPLETED CAREERS

Don Heirman reported the Completed Careers column of the upcoming newsletter will include remembrances on Carl Baum and Risaburo Sato as well as obituaries for Dr. Sato, Ruediger Vahldieck, and Bob Howland.

CONSTITUTION AND BYLAWS

Todd Hubing reviewed the changes suggested by IEEE to the EMC-S constitution and bylaws as a result of the Society's five year review and the recommended response. (See PDF of Society Review C&B Recommendations.) This will be published in the Newsletter as required for membership review before a change can be made.

MEMBERSHIP

Bob Davis advised that total IEEE membership is up 1.4%, since this time last year. Total Society Membership is up 0.1% since this time last year. EMC Society Membership is down 0.5% (21) to 3862 (with Affiliates), since this time last year. EMC Society Student Membership is down 1.8% (1) to 56 since this time last year. Fifteen members have been elevated to Senior grade since March 2011. He is working on membership tracking in order to develop an approach to increase retention. Three new displays were purchased in December 2010: two are 6'x6' Pop-Up Table Top displays and one is a smaller, ShowStyle Display. The ShowStyle Display had its debut at the Regional Conferences in Argentina and Brazil in April and again in Detroit in May. This display is available to all chapters. The display is stored with Janet O'Neil. The Pop-Up display graphic design was completed in July, in time for the debut of the new display and graphic design at the 2011 Symposium in Long Beach. The second display will be shipped to Region 10 for use at conferences.

DISTINGUISHED LECTURER (DL) PROGRAM

Bruce Archambeault reported on the DL program. The DLs for 2010-2011 include Dr. Giulio Antonini, Mark Steffka, and Dr. Omar Ramahi. The DLs for 2011-2012 include Jerry Ramie, Jerry Meyerhoff, Professor Wen-Yan Yin, and Chuck Bunting. The report includes financial data on the program as well as the number of presentations/trips per DL. A list of the current topics presented as part of the video DL library is included in his report.

Mr. Archambeault discussed the new potential DLs for 2012-2013. He moved to approve the appointment of Christian Schuster as a Distinguished Lecturer for the term 2012-2013. The motion was seconded and approved.

He then moved to approve the appointment of Sam Connor as a Distinguished Lecturer for the term 2012-2013. The motion was seconded and approved. He moved to approve the appointment of Madhavan Swaminathan as a Distinguished Lecturer for the term 2012-2013. The motion was seconded and approved. Lastly, he moved to approve the appointment of Jong-Gwan Yook as a Distinguished Lecturer for the term 2012-2013. The motion was seconded and approved

RESPECTED SPEAKERS BUREAU (RSB)

Bruce Archambeault noted three RSB talks have been presented to date in 2011. The current speaker list includes Colin Brench, Jim Drewniak, Cheung-Wei Lam, Werner Schaefer, David Pommerenke, Bruce Archambeault, Elya Joffe, Jun Fan, Chris Holloway, Tzong-Lin Wu, Eric Bogatin, Bob Scully, and Joungho Kim. The report includes presentation titles for lectures that may be given by the RSB.

REGION 8 MEMBERSHIP REPORT

Frank Sabath provided a detailed report for Region 8. Currently there are 1,202 active members in Region 8. Compared to March, this is an increase of 8% (89) active members. Due to his reminder e-mail, the number of those members that have not renewed their IEEE membership (in arrears) decreased by 48 members to 119. This is equal to the number he reported in November 2010. The number of inactive members decreased to 161. The distributions of active members are shown in his report. Within 20 sections, there are 13 EMC Chapters and seven joint/EMC Chapters. On October 24, 2011, the Benelux Section EMC chapter celebrated its ten-year anniversary.

REGION 9 MEMBERSHIP REPORT

Maria Alejandra Mora Riveros reported that EMC membership in Region 9 is constant since her last report. There is almost no variation in the number of active members in the sections with higher memberships, which are South Brazil (21 members), Argentina (20 members), Colombia (13 members), and Mexico (17 members). Mr. Davis noted that Maria has moved to France and can no longer effectively perform her responsibilities as Region 9 Membership Coordinator. Gustavo Fano has agreed to take over the position, effective immediately.

REGION 10 MEMBERSHIP REPORT

Takeo Yoshino reported on Region 10 activity. He attended the APEMC 2011 conference on Jeju Island, Korea. The report includes a summary of activities of the new member campaign and new member applications at the IEEE EMC Society display at APEMC 2011. At the end of the conference, 38 application forms and other materials were transferred to Prof. Joungho Kim, the new chairman of the Seoul Chapter to use for increasing new EMC membership in Korea.

CHAPTERS

Sergio Pignari, Chapter Coordinator, reported that the contact information for the Chapter Chairs, as well as indication of the Chapter Angels, has been updated with the new Chapter Chairs and Angels serving for 2011. The updated version has been finalized and posted on the EMC-S website. Contacts have been restored with the Chairs of the following Chapters: Rocky Mountain (Denver), Russia (North-West), Russia (Siberia), and Tucson Chapters. As a consequence, the number of non-responsive Chapters still not responding has decreased to the following four: Montreal, North-West Florida, Taipei, Ukraine (Kharkov). As part of the outreach activity, two dedicated meetings have been setup for September 2011 with the Shanghai Chapter and the Hong Kong Chapter. The petition submitted by Vesna Javor to form the IEEE Serbia and Montenegro Section Electromagnetic Compatibility Society Chapter has obtained the final approval. The official formation date is 6 May 2011. Vesna

Javor is the Chapter Chair for the current year. New Chapters under construction include: Southwest Ohio (US), Waterloo (Ontario, Canada), West Michigan (US), as well as Iran, Greece, and Denmark.

GOLD PROGRAM

Caroline Chan reports that there is a difficulty reaching out to members that are eligible to join the GOLD program but who joined IEEE after graduation. There seems to be no such database that indicates those people in membership. Bob Davis and GOLD USA are looking into how the system can be improved for a better database. Emails have been exchanged among Caroline Chan, Robert Davis, William Somerville (GOLD Representative), Soon Wan Gim, and Gigi Lau (who will be speaking during the GOLD Introduction on Tuesday night of the symposium week at the Welcome Reception GOLD session on how to promote GOLD EMC to the young engineers and the benefits from being part of the GOLD program). The target is to bring awareness to the eligible attendees in the IEEE EMC Society and bring volunteers to the group.

SECTIONS COORDINATOR

Henry Benitez reported as the Sections Coordinator. Mr. Benitez continues to support Chapter development in Mexico and provide Section liaison support. He is developing good relations with the Region 9 Director in order to solicit for EMC-S Chapter or Joint Chapter formations, particularly in that region. He will participate in the Sections Congress activities to integrate MGA and TAB activities. He and Bob Davis will represent the EMC-S with a display at tabletop SC Exhibition for Societies and Councils. Mr. Benitez is in contact with the new EMC-S Region 9 Coordinator, Gustavo Fano. He is preparing for the 2011 Sections Congress, which overlaps the end of the EMC-S 2011 Symposium.

SISTER SOCIETIES

Chuck Bunting reported that email contact was made with Dr. Subbarao (Head EMCD, SAMEER - Centre for Electromagnetics) in India. He pointed Mr. Bunting in the direction of Dr. D.C. Pande, Chairman of the SEMCE (I). Dr. Pande requested the MOU be sent and that was done. Email contact was made with Erping Li (in Singapore). He pointed Mr. Bunting in the direction of Dr. Richard Gao (Singapore EMC Chapter Chair). That follow-up has not been completed. Mr. Bunting will follow-up on the contacts already made with the India and China groups. It is hoped that firm commitments can be made by the November Board meeting. The goal is to develop our first sister society agreement with India. The next goal will be to create a strategy for identifying key groups in Japan that could further the development of a sister society agreement.

7.0 CONFERENCE SERVICES

Bruce Archambeault presented his report. (See VP Conference Services Report.)

The report started with a presentation by the Santa Clara Valley EMC Chapter to hold the 2015 IEEE Symposium on EMC in the spring.

Next, Tom Braxton's report as the International Conference Committee Chair was reviewed. This highlights the status of the upcoming IEEE EMC symposiums, including EMC 2011 (Long Beach), EMC 2012 (Pittsburgh), EMC 2013 (Denver), EMC 2014 (Raleigh), EMC 2015 (Dresden), and EMC 2016 (Ottawa). For EMC 2010 in Fort Lauderdale, Mr. Archambeault noted the audit has been completed and closed with the IEEE; the symposium surplus is 19.5%

Regarding EMC 2013, Mr. Archambeault moved to approve a \$40,000 interest free loan to the Committee for the 2013 IEEE International Symposium on Electromagnetic Compatibility. The motion was seconded and approved.

Regarding EMC 2016, Mr. Archambeault moved to approve a \$1,000 interest free loan to the Committee for the IEEE 2016 International Symposium on Electromagnetic Compatibility in Ottawa, Canada. The motion was seconded and approved.

A discussion was held on future conference management services (CMS) to help future years' symposium committees. Mr. Archambeault moved to approve the use of a CMS service to help future committees negotiate convention centers and hotels at the discretion of VP of Conferences and the local committee chair. The motion was seconded and approved.

On Global EMC Symposia Co-Sponsorship, Mr. Archambeault reported for chair Frank Sabath. The report summarizes the requests for EMC-S technical co-sponsorship requests and the status of review and approval by TAC.

Mr. Archambeault moved to approve Technical Co-Sponsorship for the 2012 ESA Workshop on Aerospace EMC. The motion was seconded and approved.

Mr. Archambeault moved to approve Technical Co-Sponsorship for the 15th IEEE Workshop on Signal Propagation on Interconnections, SPI 2011. The motion was seconded and approved.

Mr. Archambeault moved to approve Technical Co-Sponsorship for the 2012 European Conference and Exhibition on Electromagnetics, EUROEM 2012. The motion was seconded and approved.

Mr. Archambeault moved to approve Technical Co-Sponsorship for the 6th Asia-Pacific Conference on Environmental Electromagnetics (CEEM 2012). The motion was seconded and approved.

EXHIBITOR LIAISON

Janet O'Neil reported that the plans are finalized for the exhibitor breakfast on Thursday, August 18. In addition to the usual reports from the outgoing (EMC 2011) and incoming (EMC 2012) symposium committees, we invited the exhibit chair from EMC 2015 to give a short "save the date" presentation. Since this is our first international symposium since Montreal in 2001, and combines with EMC Europe in 2015, we wanted to make sure the exhibitors had plenty of time to plan for this symposium and could ask questions in advance. For EMC 2011, five tabletop display spaces have been sold to date. There are 177 booths sold, which is higher than last year. Revenue collected to date is \$488,100. The number of complimentary or bartered booths is 19. Several new exhibitors will be at EMC 2011.

REGIONAL CONFERENCE COORDINATOR

Janet O'Neil's report on regional events in Regions 1-7 and Region 9 is included in the VP Conferences Report. This lists the chapters who have hosted events and upcoming scheduled events. Details are provided on the Region 9 events held in March/April 2011 in Argentina and Brazil.

8.0 TECHNICAL SERVICES

Bob Scully, Vice President for Technical Services, presented his report. (See VP Technical Services Report.)

Mr. Scully presented a motion on the purchase of software for the paper review process. The report outlines the pros and cons of this purchase. Mr. Scully moved to approve the Conference Exchange Software and services proposal, and proceed with implementation of the software immediately for EMC-S purposes for the 2012 Symposium paper review process. Future implementation shall entail a two part process: 1) BoD approval of the system(s) to be used; 2) Cost of use/implementation to be borne as a normal "cost of doing business" by the EMC-S and/or the individual Symposia Committees. The motion was seconded and approved.

EDUCATION AND STUDENT ACTIVITIES (ESAC)

Tom Jerse's report notes that the EMC-S supports numerous educational outreaches and the BoD has voiced an interest for ESAC to coordinate these efforts to improve efficiency by reducing unnecessary overlap and to provide a clear, linked curriculum so that Symposium attendees can more easily understand the sequence of courses and how they fit the needs of the students. Work is still in the formative stage to develop a set of proposals to integrate the various educational outreaches, both proposed and existing, into a curriculum that gives our symposium attendees a clear picture of the various paths available to pursue EMC education. The ESAC report includes updates by the various subcommittees, including the Global University, the University Grant, Experiments and Demonstrations, Student Paper and Student Design Competitions, to name a few.

TECHNICAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE (TAC)

TAC Chair Bruce Archambeault noted that the committee held an in-person meeting on 14 May 2011 at Missouri University of Science and Technology. Jun Fan was the host. Minutes are not yet ready for distribution. Released minutes will be posted on http://www.emcs.org/committees/tac/tac-mtgs.html. During this meeting, all papers were put into sessions for EMC 2011. Sessions were scheduled. Paper review software was discussed and a set of software requirements were developed. The iNARTE questions are considered in poor shape; TAC renewed its commitment to reviewing these questions for technical accuracy. Chuck Bunting was unanimously voted as the new TAC secretary, replacing Kermit Phipps. TAC will hold the usual two meetings during the Symposium week, on Monday and Thursday mornings. All BoD members are welcome to attend. In order to forge a better working relationship between TAC, ESAC, and RAC, the Chairs for ESAC and RAC are expected to attend, or provide representatives, to all future TAC meetings.

The VP for Technical Services report also includes an adjunct report from Kimball Williams regarding the Society for the Social Implications of Technology (SSIT), the Technology Management Council (TMC), and the TC1 Ethics and Leadership Representative.

9.0 STANDARDS

Don Heirman, Vice-President for Standards, presented the schedule of Standards Committee meetings during the Symposium week. (See EMC Society Standards Committee meetings report.) He will present a thorough report on Standards activity at the Thursday evening Board meeting.

10.0 PRESIDENT ELECT REPORT

President-elect Ghery Pettit showed the planned meetings for 2012 as below:

- March 16-18, Scottsdale, AZ
- August 5 and 9, Pittsburgh, PA
- November 16-18, Raleigh, NC

11.0 NEW BUSINESS

Impact Factor – President Maradei discussed her presentation to IEEE TAB titled "Strategies for Increasing the IF of IEEE Journals: Best Practices and Ethics." (See IF-maradei_TAB.) This was given as part of the President's Forum at the November 2010 TAB meeting in New Brunswick. Her report explained the history of the "Impact Factor" (IF) and the current status of this rating for technical journals.

12.0 SUSPENSION OF MEETING

Ms. Maradei suspended the meeting at 5:15 pm. The meeting will continue on Thursday evening, August 18, at 6:00 pm.

Continuation of meeting on Thursday evening, August 18, at 6:00 pm.

1.0 CALL TO ORDER

President Maradei called the meeting to order at 6:30 pm. (See Part II of the agenda.)

2.0 NEW BUSINESS continued from the previous meeting

EMC-S History - Don Sweeney talked about material he has received from Ed Bronaugh. The Board discussed how to archive this material. Dan Hoolihan suggested involving the chapters in this activity. Mike Oliver volunteered his chapter to help.

Approval of the March Meeting Minutes - Secretary O'Neil noted that some changes to the minutes were received just before the Board meeting. President Maradei advised that the amended minutes from the March Board meeting will be circulated to the Board for an electronic vote in the immediate future.

3.0 STANDARDS UPDATE

Don Heirman presented his report. (See VP Standards Report.) The Standards Committees started their series of meetings during the Symposium week on Monday with the first part of the Standards Development Committee (SDCom) meeting, followed by the Standards Education and Training Committee meeting and ending with the Standards Advisory and Coordination Committee (SACCom) meeting, chaired by John Norgard (NASA). The SACCom also met with the RAC and the EMC-S Board of Directors at the SACCom-RAC annual luncheon.

STANDARDS DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE (SDCom)

The SDCom meeting was chaired by Andy Drozd (Andro Computational Solutions) and was again well attended including a presentation by the IEEE Standards Association staff supporting our EMC-S standards activity.

Following is a summary of the meeting:

- Eleven of the 16 members of SDCom attended the meetings with 12 guests on Monday morning. There were four guests at the Part 2 meeting on Wednesday morning.
- Malia Zaman of the IEEE staff gave a presentation on changes to the IEEE ballot process, effective 2012.
 Reaffirmations will no longer occur, but various levels of revisions to standards will occur when a standard reaches the end of its life cycle. Interpretations will no longer be permitted. Finally, project

authorization requests (PARs) shall be submitted for all changes to a standard even to re-ballot an expired standard without changes.

The report includes an update of the EMC-S standards that was reported at the two SDCom meetings. In addition, representatives of SDCom are closely following and actively engaged in the guideline document for Smart Grid interoperability (P2030) which is sponsored by SCC21. There were also four working groups that met during the Symposium week to report their progress on their standards work for P1688 Line Replaceable Modules, P299.1 Small Chamber Evaluation and P473 Site Survey.

P473 is restarting its work as the project has stalled. EMC-S Technical Committee 3 (TC3) on electromagnetic environments is responsible now for the publication of the next edition of this standard.

For more information on SDCom, visit:

http://www.ewh.ieee.org/soc/emcs/standards/sdcomindex.html

STANDARDS EDUCATION AND TRAINING COMMITTEE (SETCom)

The SETCom meeting was chaired by Qiubo Ye. Below is a summary of the meeting:

- Thirteen people attended (two members and 11 guests).
- Tom Jerse, chair of the EMC-S Education and Student Activities Committee (ESAC) attended.
- It was noted that the vice chair can no longer take that role this is a vacancy needing to be filled. Note: Subsequent to the meeting, EMC-S Board member Alistair Duffy agreed to take over as vice chair.

The chair then presented the SETCom recent activities:

- Establish EMC standard education and training workshops in Europe with the assistance of Andy Marvin and Alistair Duffy.
- Workshops in the Pacific area will be assisted by R. Koga.
- Soliciting EMC Standards tutorial articles from experts to be published in the EMC Newsletter.

For more information on SETCom, visit:

http://www.ewh.ieee.org/soc/emcs/standards/setcomindex.html

STANDARDS ADVISORY AND COORDINATION COMMITTEE (SACCom)

John Norgard, chair of SACCom, held a brief meeting as the major activity extended into the SACCom-RAC luncheon where those SACCom members present gave an update of their EMC standards activities. Ten people attended (four members). It was recorded that there are 17 organizations identified that represent non-EMC-S standards writers on EMC subjects. The rest of the short meeting was used to prepare for SACCom-RAC luncheon presentations that immediately followed the close of the SACCom meeting.

Twenty people attended (eight were Board members) the SACCom-RAC luncheon meeting with the EMC-S Board of Directors. Short reports/PP slides were presented by the attending SACCom members on CISPR A, B, and I as well as on AIAA (American Institute of Aeronautics and Astronautics) and SAE (Society of Automotive Engineers). The RAC members presented on ITIC TG5 (Information Technology Industry Committee) and ACIL (American Council of Independent Laboratories); this report was an in-depth review on ACIL's proficiency testing activity.

For more information on SACCom, visit:

http://www.ewh.ieee.org/soc/emcs/standards/saccomindex.html

See Mr. Heirman's report for the latest list of SACCom representatives.

4.0 TECHNICAL SERVICES UPDATE

Bob Scully presented his report. (See VP Technical Services Report.)

Bob Scully moved to disband the Representative Advisory Committee (RAC). The motion was seconded and approved.

5.0 MEMBER SERVICES UPDATE

Bob Davis, VP for Member Services, gave a verbal report. Fifty new members signed up at the symposium. Completion of the membership surveys will be promoted tomorrow. The new EMC-S booth was well received; new marketing brochures were available for the first time and were well received. The EMC-S booth will be shipped to an EMC event in Australia for display. Paul Duxbury will also display the new booth at the EMC Europe 2011 event next month. The Australia and UK chapter chairs received a PDF of the new membership brochure and application to print out locally. The Chapter chair training/dinner was well attended. Focused training sessions with speakers from IEEE on SAMEE, etc. were presented.

Caroline Chan reported on the GOLD program. Public relations is needed to educate the membership about the GOLD program, as there were many questions about what the program stood for.

6.0 CONFERENCES UPDATE

Bruce Archambeault moved to hold the 2015 EMC Symposium in March 2015 in Santa Clara, CA. This will be a North American symposium that does not compete with the Dresden symposium. The motion was seconded and approved. It was suggested to contact the DoD group who holds an annual conference to see if they are interested in co-locating their conference with our Santa Clara symposium.

Ray Adams presented an update on EMC 2011. Attendance was just over 2,000 people. The financial surplus is approximately 19%. The author of one of the best paper candidates was denied a visa so he could not attend the symposium.

Bruce Archambeault moved to allow a best symposium paper candidate or winner whose author cannot attend the symposium due to circumstances beyond their control, as evaluated by the VP of Conferences, to be published on IEEE *Xplore*. The motion was seconded and approved. Henry Benitez voted against the motion and wished to be recorded.

Janet O'Neil, Vice-chair of EMC 2011 and Exhibitor Liaison, reported briefly on the symposium and exhibitor feedback. She noted problems involved special dietary restrictions leading to costly meals. Social media – Facebook and Twitter – were used for the first time. Alcohol served in the exhibit hall was well received by the exhibitors. Ms. O'Neil will provide a thorough report on the Exhibitors Breakfast at the next Board meeting. In general though, exhibitors were happy with the symposium and the booth traffic.

7.0 COMMUNICATIONS UPDATE

Perry Wilson advised they held the Transactions on EMC Associate Editors luncheon during the symposium week. A discussion was held on the importance of the impact factor. Heyno Garbe, Editor-in-Chief of the Transactions on EMC, showed a few slides that discussed the impact factor.

8.0 NEW BUSINESS/ADDITIONAL ITEMS

Bruce Archambeault suggested eliminating the Thursday evening symposium Board meeting and instead holding a telecom two weeks after the symposium. Ghery Pettit advised he would take this into consideration.

9.0 FINANCIAL IMPACT OF APPROVED MOTIONS

Todd Hubing summarized the financial impact of motions made during the August 14 and 18 meetings:

\$41,000	Interest-free loans to 2013 and 2016 Symposium committees
~ \$5,000	Per year for transition from 4 to 6 issues per year of the Transactions on EMC
\$200	Four Technical Co-sponsorships
\$5,700	Development of website template for chapters
\$10,900	2012 Technical Program software licensing
\$62,800	

10.0 ACTION ITEM REVIEW

Secretary O'Neil reviewed the action items discussed during the meeting. An updated, consolidated list of action items will be sent to the Board following the meeting.

11.0 CLOSING REMARKS

fant Olberl

Francesca Maradei thanked everyone for attending and contributing to the Board meeting. (See Closing Remarks.)

12.0 ADJOURN

The meeting adjourned at 10:15 pm.

Submitted by:

Janet O'Neil

Secretary, EMC Society Board of Directors